
 
 

 
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE 

 
Board of Selectmen Agenda 

April 27, 2023 @ 6:00 PM  
VILLAGE FIRE STATION 

32 North Street 
 

 
This is an in-person meeting, but the public may join in Zoom webinar format 

Join by computer or mobile device and click on: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81037442207 

or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 810 3744 2207 
By phone 1(929) 205 6099 US 

 
 

1. Call to Order. 

2. Approve the April 13, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes. 

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of 
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.) 

4. Consider the renewal of liquor and special amusement licenses submitted by 
Alisson’s Restaurant, Alisson’s/Docksquare LTD, located at 11 Dock Square.  

 
5. Certification of the referendum questions for the June town meeting warrant.  

 
6. Authorize and sign the June 2023 town meeting warrant. 

7. Countersign the RSU 21 Budget Validation Referendum Election Warrant. 
 
8. Authorize Wastewater Commitment for FY23. 

 
9. Set a public hearing date of May 11, 2023, to consider ordinance revisions on the 

June 13, 2023, town meeting ballot.  
 

10. Award bid for heater replacement at the Public Works garage.  
 

11. Public Safety Committee recommendation on the South Main Street traffic issues 
brought up by David Strachan. 

   

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81037442207
https://zoom.us/join


 
12. Town Clerk’s Week Proclamation  

 
13. Other Business.   

 
14. Approve the April 27, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant. 

 
15. Adjournment.  



Town of Kennebunkport 
Board of Selectmen 

April 13, 2023 
6:00 PM  

MINUTES 

Selectmen attending:  Edward Hutchins, Sheila Matthews-Bull, Allen Daggett, Jon Dykstra, 
Michael Weston. 

1. Call to Order:

Selectman Hutchins called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM, noting that agenda item #6:
Review of Parks Master Plan Concept Design, has been tabled and will not be
discussed in this meeting.

April Dufoe called the Budget Board meeting to order, noting that eleven board
members were present.

2. Approve the March 23, and March 30, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes:

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to approve the
March 23, and March 30, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes. Voted: 5-0. Motion
passed.

Chairman Hutchins noted that Town Manager Laurie Smith is attending tonight’s
meeting via Zoom as she is attending a conference in Burlington, VT.

Budget Board Chair April Dufoe asked that their last meeting’s minutes be approved.

Motion by Budget Board member Bob Wester, seconded by David James, to approve
the minutes of the previous Budget Board meeting. Voted: 10-0-1. (Dan Beard
abstained because he was not present at the previous meeting). Motion passed.

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board
of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.):

No one came forward with any issues.

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken.

4. Review of the St. Ann’s easement deed for the June warrant:

Laurie Smith recapped that there has been deterioration in the St. Ann’s seawall, and
the Board of Selectmen have approved placing an easement deed on the June warrant
allowing St. Anne’s to maintain, repair and replace seawall at a maximum height of 18
feet. Selectmen Weston asked what the “consideration paid” in the language of the deed
refers to. Laurie said she would clarify that with the attorneys.

Item 2



April 13, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 7 

Motion by Selectman Weston, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to approve the 
easement deed as discussed, with clarification from the Town Attorney. Voted: 5-0. 
Motion passed. 

5. Review and vote on the proposed warrant articles for Town Meeting in June:

Laurie highlighted question #6 in the warrant to purchase property on Langsford Road
for a boat ramp, noting that this needs to be approved by both Boards.

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to approve the
agreement to purchase land on Langsford Road for a boat ramp. Voted: 5-0. Motion
passed.

Budget Board Dan Beard brought up concerns about the monitoring and management
of the boat ramp. Selectman Hutchins replied that the boat ramp would be permitted
only for Town residents and mooring holders, and that a system will need to be set up
to control access. Dan questioned the need to have the Town purchase the land, which
initiated some discussion with the Board. Selectman Weston noted that the committee
which selected the site would continue and address these issues. Budget Board
member Bob Wester voiced his support for the purchase, citing the convenience of a
boat ramp as he currently has a mooring in Wells and has to truck his car to Wells to
put it in the water, unless he pays a fee to do so on the Kennebunk River.

Vote taken by the Budget Board to approve the agreement to purchase land on
Langsford Road for a boat ramp. Voted: 10-1. Motion passed.

Laurie Smith referred to Article 2 of the Warrant relating to housekeeping articles,
requesting a vote from the Board of Selectmen.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to approve
Article 2. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Laurie Smith then called attention to Article 3 dealing with tax abatements and applying
and expending funds from various revenues or grants that might come our way. A vote
from both the Selectmen and the Budget Board is needed.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to approve Article 3.
Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Motion by Budget Board member Bob Wester, seconded by Allen Evelyn, to approve
Article 3. Voted: 11-0. Motion passed.

Next Laurie cited Article 4 which authorizes the Tax Collector to take pre-payments and
allows the Town to accept easement deeds and unconditional gifts. A Selectmen vote
is needed.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept Article
4. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.



April 13, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 7 

Laurie explained that votes have already been taken for Articles 5 through 10. Article 
11 deals with the revenues discussed in the budget process; the $3.7 million including 
the changes to revenue that the Selectmen discussed after meeting with the Budget 
Board. It also relates to the use of $200,000 from the undesignated fund balance and 
the $600,000 from capital reserve funds. This requires a vote from both the Selectmen 
and the Budget Board. 

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull to accept Article 
11. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Motion by Budget Board member David James, seconded by Ki Leffler, to approve 
Article 11. Voted: 11-0. Motion passed. 

Laurie informed the Selectmen that Article 12 is to ratify the gift of a new pumper truck 
from Kittredge funds when it arrives. 

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to approve 
Article 12. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed. 

Motion by Budget Board member Dan Beard, seconded by Allan Evelyn, to adjourn the 
Budget Board. Voted: 11-0. Motion passed. 

6. Review of Parks Master Plan Concept Designs: Postponed

7. Enterprise budget presentations:

a. Recreation Special Revenue Budget – Parks and Recreation Director Stephanie
Simpson presented information about program revenue sources and expenses.
The net program income for FY 24 is projected at $414,203. The after-school
program serves 105 students out of a total of 165 students at Consolidated School.
The net budget is $95,628 with a transfer out of $60,000 to the General Fund.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Weston, to accept
the Recreation Special Revenue Budget. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

b. Wastewater Budget – Public Works director Chris Simeoni provided a summary of
the operations of the Wastewater Treatment Facility, noting the infrastructure
reinvestment done over the past six years. They have replaced the Chick’s Creek
and Green Street Pump Stations, the headworks influent and effluent pumps and
the plant’s emergency standby generator; and have rehabbed both circular
clarifiers. Construction has begun on the Cape Porpoise, Paddy Creek & Wildes
District Road Pump Stations. Engineering is underway on replacing the 45-year-
old belt filter presses. New centrifuges have been manufactured and are awaiting
delivery. But much infrastructure reinvestment needs to be done to replace aging



April 13, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 7 

components that are at risk of failing, including the PLCs (Programmable Logic 
Controllers), the SCADA system and mixer bridges. Eric Labelle commented 
further that the goal is to get to a point where we are achieving operating capital of 
$500,000 to $600,000 annually to reduce the need for bonding groups of multiple, 
smaller projects with a lifetime that is less than the typical 20 year bond, and to 
have a reserve to deal with an emergency equipment failure. Chris elaborated that 
they are seeking an increase of 14% to the sewer use rate, increasing the FY 23 
rate of $499.52 to $569.87 for FY 24. The goal is to gradually increase the sewer 
rate over the next five years to allow fewer funds to be taken from the investment 
fund and sewer fund. 

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept 
the Wastewater Budget. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed. 

c. Cape Porpoise Pier Budget – Harbormaster Frank Orr had a brief presentation. He
expects the Cape Porpoise Pier membership numbers to be pretty steady for the
next year. There are 211 moorings in Town waters, with 44 requesters on a waitlist.
Priorities for FY 24 are: supporting the Cape Porpoise Pier rehabilitation project,
inventory and plotting of moorings in Town waters, development of the public boat
launch proposed on Langsford Road, supporting existing and promoting new
development of aquaculture, and long term optimization of Town anchorages.
Expenses are the upgrade to the pier office phone system, the addition of a second
dumpster with three pickups a week in high season, the implementation of online
mooring software, increased fuel costs, and increased building expenses related
to the Pier renovation. The Pier Advisory Committee voted unanimously to pass
the budget.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept
the Pier Budget. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

d. Dock Square Parking Lot Budget – Laurie Smith stated that the conservative
revenue projection was for $500,000 this year. The expenses include salary and
wages for police officers who work the Dock Square area, parking lot attendants
and attendants at Cape Porpoise Pier, maintenance of the parking lot machines
and credit card fees, and the transfer out of $360,000 to the general fund (including
dock square general fund expenses, capital expenses of sidewalk repair and the
repaving of Pearl and Elm Streets). A net increase of funds to the Dock Square
fund of $43,000 is expected.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept
the Dock Square Parking Lot Budget. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.



April 13, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 7 

e. Government Wharf Budget – Laurie Smith said the Government Wharf Committee
is looking for a slight increase in membership dues. Lobstermen would see an
increase from $450 to $500, commercial dues from $275 to $300, base dues from
$175 to $200, and student dues from $125 to $150. This is expected to bring in a
total revenue of about $11,000. The majority of the expenses are due to electricity
for the condenser units, hoists, lights etc. We do have Internet at the facility and
hope in the next several months to install a webcam with a view of the mouth of
the Kennebunk River, and security cameras for Government Wharf to be funded
by the York County EMA Office. There is also a small amount of funding for pier
maintenance.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept
the Government Wharf Budget. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

8. Consider fee and permit increases:

a. Building permit fees – Director of Planning and Development, Werner Gilliam,
stated that the residential building permit fee is proposed to be increased from $10
per $1,000 to $12 per $1,000, effective June 1, 2023.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to increase the
building permit fee from $10 per $1,000 to $12 per $1,000, effective June 1, 2023.
Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

b. Parking violations and late fees – Laurie Smith explained recent changes to fee
increases for parking violations since those discussed in the budget process.
Credit card fees are $3. An increase from $53 to $60 for Goose Rocks beach had
previously been proposed, but that doesn’t account for the card processing fee. So
that amount is now proposed to be $65, and the fine for parking violations in other
areas of town is now proposed to be $35, both effective May 1, 2023. Late fees
(more than 30 days) have been $5. Other neighboring communities have charged
larger amounts for late fees, in some cases double the original fine. This proposal
is to have a one-time late fee of $20 in addition to the fine amount, effective May
1, 2023.

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to increase
the parking violation fine for Goose Rocks Beach to $65, the rest of town to $35,
and late fee (more than 30 days) to $20, all effective on May 1, 2023. Voted: 5-0.
Motion passed.



April 13, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 7 

c. Goose Rocks Beach permits – Laurie Smith explained that the proposal is to
increase the fee for non-resident daily permits only from $25 to $30 starting May
1, 2023, and resident seasonal permits be increased from $5 to $10 next year,
starting on May 1, 2024.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to
increase the non-resident daily permits to $30, effective May 1, 2023 and the
resident seasonal permits to $10, effective May 1, 2024. Voted: 5-0. Motion
passed.

9. Approve the amendments to Pier Road boat launch conditions:

Laurie Smith recapped that the Pier Road causeway project will elevate the road,
affecting the boat launch. The deed with the Stonehaven Drive residents states that if
there are substantial changes to the boat launch, they must provide written approval.
The Town has been in conversation with them and together have developed criteria
for changes in the way the boat ramp will be used. These changes will not go into
effect until after the boat ramp is changed due to the road construction.

Motion by Selectman Weston, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept the
proposed changes to the boat ramp use, to go into effect when the road construction
is complete. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

10. Appoint Justin Troiano to the Kennebunk River Committee as a Kennebunkport
representative with an expiration date of July 2023:

Selectman Hutchins clarified that this appointment is expected to be re-appointed after
the current expiration for all Committee members. Justin introduced himself and
Selectman Matthews-Bull said she knows Justin and supports his appointment.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to appoint
Justin Troiano to the Kennebunk River Committee as a Kennebunkport representative
with an expiration date of July 2023. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

11. Consider the renewal liquor license submitted by the Arundel Marine Service
d/b/a Arundel Wharf Restaurant, located at 43 Ocean Ave:

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to renew the
liquor license submitted by the Arundel Marine Service d/b/a Arundel Wharf
Restaurant, located at 43 Ocean Ave. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

12. Accept a $50.00 donation from an anonymous donor dedicated toward the
Nurses’ account:



April 13, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to accept a 
$50.00 donation from an anonymous donor dedicated toward the Nurses’ account. 
Voted: 5-0. Motion passed. 

13. Accept a $500.00 donation from Patricia and Larry Keller dedicated towards the
emergency fuel fund:

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to accept a
$500.00 donation from Patricia and Larry Keller dedicated towards the emergency fuel
fund. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

14. Accept a $1,000.00 donation from Alisson’s restaurant dedicated towards the
general assistance fund:

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to accept a
$1,000.00 donation from Alisson’s restaurant dedicated towards the general
assistance fund. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

15. Other Business:

None of the Selectmen nor Laurie Smith had any other business.

16. Approve the April 13, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant:

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to approve the
April 13, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

17. Adjournment:

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to adjourn.
Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Submitted by, 

Dave Powell, 
Technology Specialist 



This page was intentionally left blank. 



Item 4

















Item 5







This page was intentionally left blank. 







































CERTIFICATION OF  
PROPOSED PURCHASE & SALE AGREEMENT 

 
 
 
TO:  Tracey O’Roak, the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport.  In the name of the State of 
Maine, we hereby certify the following: 
 

"Purchase and Sale Agreement between 
Town of Kennebunkport and Harold Otis and Louise Jane Mooney" 

 
attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true copy of the purchase & sale agreement proposed for approval 
at the Annual Town Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport to be held on June 13, 2023. 
 
Dated this 27th day of April 2023, at Kennebunkport, Maine. 
 
 
 
    ____________________________       __________________________ 
    Jon D. Dykstra       Sheila A. Matthews-Bull 
 
 
 
    ________________________________       ______________________________ 
     Edward W. Hutchins       Allen A. Daggett  
 
 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston 

 
 

A majority of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport 
 

Notary Public 



4th April



























CERTIFICATION OF  
PROPOSED EASEMENT DEED 

TO:  Tracey O’Roak, the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport.  In the name of the State of 
Maine, we hereby certify the following: 

"Easement Agreement between  
the Town of Kennebunkport and St. Ann’s Episcopal Church" 

attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true copy of the easement proposed for approval at the Annual 
Town Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport to be held on June 13, 2023. 

Dated this 27th day of April 2023, at Kennebunkport, Maine. 

    ____________________________       __________________________ 
    Jon D. Dykstra       Sheila A. Matthews-Bull 

    ________________________________       ______________________________ 
     Edward W. Hutchins       Allen A. Daggett 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston

A majority of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport 



Exhibit A 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT is made this ____ day of __________, 2023, by and 
between the INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, a municipal 
corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine, located in York County, Maine 
(“Grantor”) and ST. ANN’S EPISCOPAL CHURCH, a Maine church corporation, with a 
mailing address of P. O. Box 44, Kennebunkport, Maine, 04046 (“Grantee”). 

WHEREAS, Grantor owns a certain lot or parcel of land situated southerly of Ocean 
Avenue and in the Town of Kennebunkport, York County, Maine generally in the area known as 
“Old Fort Beach” being of portion of the land more particularly described in the deed from 
Henry Parsons to the Town of Kennebunkport dated August 1, 1944 and recorded in the York 
County Registry of Deeds in Book 1018, Page 179 (the “Grantor’s Property”); 

WHEREAS, Grantee owns a certain lot or parcel of land in said Town of Kennebunkport 
located at 167 Ocean Avenue, Kennebunkport, Maine known as the Rectory parcel described in 
the deed recorded in the York County Registry of Deeds in Book 9347, Page 225 and an abutting 
lot or parcel land known as the Church parcel described in the deed recorded in the York County 
Registry of Deeds in Book 1888, Page 688 (collectively, the “Grantee’s Property”). 

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to the terms and conditions of the following 
easement rights, to burden the Grantor’s Property and for the benefit of the Grantee’s Property. 

NOW THEREFORE, for consideration paid, Grantor hereby GRANTS to Grantee, with 
Quitclaim Covenant, a non-exclusive permanent easement (the “Easement”) over the portion of 
Grantor’s Property described on the attached EXHIBIT A and shown on the sketch attached as 
EXHIBIT B (the “Easement Area”)  for (i) the use, maintenance, repair and replacement of a sea 
wall as presently located on the Grantor’s Property (the “Sea Wall”), at Grantee’s sole cost and 
expense; and (ii) access to and from Ocean Avenue to the Sea Wall, including access by 
vehicles, heavy equipment and on foot for said purposes only. 

Access over the Easement Area shall be at reasonable times and the Grantee shall have 
the obligation to obtain approval in advance, except in the event of an emergency, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, from the Town of Kennebunkport Select Board or 
Town Manager without the necessity of a town meeting vote, of (i) the person or persons 
entering the Easement Area, (ii) the nature of the work to be done and anticipated time line with 
the intent of minimizing the impact on the Easement Area.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Easement Agreement nor the maintenance, repair and replacement rights herein, 
Grantee acknowledges that the location, width, length and general appearance of the Sea Wall 



shall remain the same or substantially the same as presently constituted and the height of the Sea 
Wall shall be approximately eighteen (18) feet.   

Grantee shall be responsible for obtaining any necessary permits and approvals required 
for such use or improvements made within the Easement Area, and such use or improvements 
shall comply with all laws, ordinances, and regulations pertaining thereto.   

Grantee’s, its agents’ or contractors’ use of the Easement Area shall be at Grantee’s sole 
risk and Grantee hereby releases Grantor for any liability with respect to, or arising out of such 
use.  Grantee shall indemnify and hold harmless Grantor from and against any and all claims, 
damages, costs and expenses arising from the use of the Easement by Grantee, its agents or 
contractors, including without limitation any injury to persons or damage to property.  Without 
limiting the foregoing, Grantee shall repair any damage to the Grantor’s Property caused by 
Grantee’s, its agents’ or contractors’ use of the Easement Area to substantially the same 
condition as existed prior to such disturbance. The foregoing indemnity shall include an 
indemnity against any and all reasonable costs of litigation, including without limitation 
reasonable attorney’s fees.  Nothing in this paragraph shall constitute a waiver by Grantor of any 
provision of the Maine Tort Claims Act, 14 M.R.S. §8101 et seq.  

Grantee shall not suffer or permit any mechanic’s or materialmen’s lien to attach to the 
Grantor’s Property.  In the event any such lien shall be filed and recorded; Grantee shall 
promptly take steps to remove such lien in any lawful manner. 

Grantor reserves the right to use and enjoy the Grantor Property in any manner that shall 
not be inconsistent with or interfere with the Easement granted herein.   

The Easement is further conveyed SUBJECT TO all rights, privileges, easements, 
obligations, conditions, covenants, reservations and restrictions set forth in deeds in record title 
to these areas of land insofar as such rights may be in force and effect. 

The Easement herein granted shall run with the land and be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto, their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have set their hands, under seal, as of the date first 
written above. 

INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF 
KENNEBUNKPORT 

By: 
      Laurie Smith, Its Town Manager 
      Duly authorized by Town Meeting vote 



STATE OF MAINE 
COUNTY OF YORK _________________, 2023 

Then personally appeared the above-named Laurie Smith, Town Manager of the Town of 
Kennebunkport, and acknowledge the foregoing instrument to be her free act and deed in said 
capacity,  

Before me, 

Notary Public  

ST. ANN’S EPISCOPAL CHURCH 
By:_________________________________ 
Shephard Hill, Its Senior Warden,  
Duly Authorized by Church Vestry vote 

STATE OF MAINE 
COUNTY OF YORK _________________, 2023 

Then personally appeared Shephard Hill, Senior Warden of St Ann’s Episcopal Church. 
and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed in said capacity. 

Before me, 
________________________________________ 
Notary Public  

ST. ANN’S EPISCOPAL CHURCH 
By:_________________________________ 
Shephard Hill, Its Senior Warden,  
Duly Authorized by Church Vestry vote 

STATE OF MAINE 
COUNTY OF YORK _________________, 2023 

Then personally appeared Shephard Hill, Senior Warden of St Ann’s Episcopal Church. 
and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed in said capacity. 

Before me, 
________________________________________ 
Notary Public 



1 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

WARRANT 
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

June 13 and 17, 2023 

State of Maine County of York, SS. 

To:  Rebecca Nolette, Constable of the Town of Kennebunkport, in the County of York, State of 
Maine. 

You are hereby required in the name of the State of Maine to notify and warn the voters of the 
Town of Kennebunkport in said County and State of the Town Meeting described in this warrant. 

GREETINGS: 

To the voters of Kennebunkport:  You are hereby notified that the Annual Town Meeting of this 
municipality will be held at Village Fire Station, located at 32 North Street, in said Town on 
Tuesday, June 13, 2023, at 8:00 a.m. for the purpose of acting on Articles numbered one a (1a) 
and one (1) as set out below.  The polls for voting on Article 1 shall be opened immediately after 
the election of the Moderator at 8:00 a.m. on June 13, 2023, and shall close at 8:00 p.m. While the 
polls are open, the Registrar of Voters will hold office hours to accept the registration of any person 
eligible to vote, to accept new enrollments, and to make any necessary corrections or changes to 
any names or addresses on the voting list.  The continuation of said meeting will be held in the 
gymnasium of the Kennebunkport Consolidated School located at 25 School Street on Saturday, 
June 17, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. for the purpose of acting on Articles numbered 2 through 12 as set out 
below. 

ARTICLE 1a.  To choose a Moderator to preside at said meeting. 

ARTICLE 1.  To elect under the provisions of Title 30-A, M.R.S.A. Section 2528, the following 
Town Officers: one (1) Selectmen, for a term of three years and one (1) Director of Regional 
School Unit No. 21, for a term of three years; and to vote on the following referendum questions 
1-6.

For each Question 1 through 4, a certified copy of the proposed ordinance is on file 
in the Town Clerk’s Office and is incorporated by reference into each Question. 

Item 6



2 

********************************************************************** 

QUESTION 1 
AMENDMENT TO THE KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CODE, 

 CHAPTER 5 – ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2023 Amendment to the Administrative Code - Boards 
and Committees” be enacted?    

[Note of explanation: This amendment seeks to change the composition of the Cape Porpoise 
Pier Committee by having at least 75% of the membership made up of Commercial Fisherman 
instead of 75% of registered voters of Kennebunkport. It also adds a definition of Commercial 
fisherman.] 

********************************************************************** 

QUESTION 2 
AMENDMENT TO THE KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CODE, 

 CHAPTER 5 - ADMINISTRATIVE CODE  

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2023 Amendment to Administrative Code - Annual and 
Special Town Meetings” be enacted?   

[Note of explanation:  This amendment changes annual town meeting from the Saturday following 
the 2nd Tuesday in June to the Wednesday evening following the 2nd Tuesday in June.] 

********************************************************************** 

QUESTION 3 
AMENDMENT TO THE KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CODE 

CHAPTER 240 - LAND USE ORDINANCE –  
TERMINOLOGY, ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2022 Amendment to Kennebunkport Town Code, Chapter 
240 -Terminology (regarding Accessory Apartments)” be enacted? 

[Note of explanation:  This amendment would revise the standards that govern Accessory 
Apartments, for the principal purpose of bringing them into compliance with a recently enacted 
state law governing housing also known as LD 2003.] 

********************************************************************** 



3 

********************************************************************** 

QUESTION 4 
AMENDMENT TO KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CODE, 

 CHAPTER 240 - LAND USE ORDINANCE – TOWN-WIDE REGULATIONS 
(PRIVATE ROAD CONSTRUCTION) 

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2022 Amendment to the Kennebunkport Town Code, 
Chapter 240 – Land Use Ordinance – Town-wide Regulations (private road construction” 
be enacted? 

[Note of explanation:  This amendment would add performance standards and technical diagrams 
regarding turn around requirements for new or expanded private roads. The turnaround 
requirements are based on the needs of a new ladder truck for which the town has entered into a 
lease purchase arrangement.] 

****************************************************************** 

QUESTION 5 
 AUTHORIZE EASEMENT DEED FOR ST. ANN’S EPISCOPAL CHURCH 

Shall the Town grant an easement over Town-owned property from Ocean Avenue over 
Old Fort Avenue (Map 7/Block 1/Lot 8) to St. Ann’s Episcopal Church for the Church to 
reconstruct and perform ongoing maintenance of the existing seawall? 

[Note of explanation:  This would grant St. Ann’s Episcopal Church an easement to access the 
seawall for maintenance and reconstruction.] 

**************************************************************** 

QUESTION 6 
AUTHORIZE PURCHASE & SALE AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE LAND ON 

LANGSFORD ROAD FOR BOAT ACCESS 

Shall the Town expend $275,000 from the Capital Reserve Account to purchase a ~0.1-
acre parcel of land situated on Langsford Road at Map 29/Block 1/Lot 3 to provide boat 
access to Cape Porpoise Harbor for Town residents and Cape Porpoise mooring holders? 

[Note of explanation:  This would authorize the Board of Selectmen to purchase land situated on 
Langsford Road to provide boat access to Cape Porpoise Harbor. This purchase would not 
increase the tax rate because the funds will come from the Capital Reserve Fund.] 

**************************************************************** 



4 

ARTICLE 2:  To see if the Town will vote to approve the following: 

A. To authorize the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers
on behalf of the Town to sell and dispose of Real Estate acquired by the Town for
nonpayment of taxes thereon, and to execute quitclaim deeds on such terms as they deem
advisable, and to authorize the Treasurer to discharge unmatured liens on payment of taxes,
interest and costs.

B. To authorize the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers
on behalf of the Town, to waive the foreclosure of any tax lien mortgage by recording a
waiver of foreclosure in the York County Registry of Deeds for any real estate title to which
they deem not in the best financial interest of the Town to hold, said authorization to waive
not to prevent the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers,
from later foreclosing on said tax lien pursuant to law, as they deem advisable.

C. To make all real and personal property taxes due and payable upon presentment of bills
and to charge eight percent (8.00%) per annum on the first half if unpaid after September
11, 2023 (or 45 days after the date of commitment if commitment is after July 21, 2023)
and on the second half if unpaid after March 10, 2024.

D. To set the interest rate to be paid by the Town on abated taxes at eight percent (8.00%) for
the fiscal year 2024.

E. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard
agreement with taxpayers establishing a “tax club” payment plan for commercial and/or
residential real estate property taxes.  (Explanation:  This article allows the Town to
establish a tax club for citizens, similar to a Christmas club.  Citizens establish a payment
plan so that they can make monthly payments throughout the year without risk of penalties
or interest charges.)

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0 

ARTICLE 3:  To see if the Town will vote to approve the following: 

A. To authorize the Selectmen to pay for tax abatements and applicable interest granted during
the fiscal year of 2023/2024 from Overlay.  (Explanation: The Selectmen, as Assessors,
are authorized to raise Overlay under Title 36 MRSA section 710 but require voter
authorization to spend Overlay. Overlay cannot be more than 5% of the Tax Commitment.)

B. To authorize the Selectmen to apply for, accept and expend from the following categories
of funds as provided by the State of Maine: Municipal Revenue Sharing, Educational
Certification Block Grant, Educational Tax Relief Grant, Public Library State Aid, Urban
Rural Road Initiative Program, Civil Emergency Funds, Snowmobile Registration Funds,
Tree Growth Reimbursement, General Assistance Reimbursement, Veterans Exemption
Reimbursement, Department of Economic & Community Development Grant Program,
Maine Emergency Management Agency, Homestead Exemption Reimbursement, and all
other state and federal grants and funds including, when necessary, the authority to sign
grant contracts, documents or other paperwork?



5 

C. To authorize the Selectmen to carry forward unencumbered surplus fund balances on June
30, 2024, for the purposes originally appropriated and to appropriate such fund balances
for such purposes to the extent the Selectmen deem advisable, such determination to be
made at a properly noticed meeting of the Board of Selectmen.

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted: 11-0 

ARTICLE 4: To see if the Town will vote to approve the following: 

A. To authorize the Tax Collector or Treasurer to accept prepayments of taxes not yet
committed pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. § 506.

B. To authorize the Selectmen to accept easement deeds on behalf of the Town granting the
Town the right to plant and maintain certain trees on private property located within the
Town.

C. To authorize the Selectmen to accept unconditional and conditional gifts of money or
property on behalf of the Town, other than gifts of sewer extensions, subject to ratification
by the Town at an annual or special town meeting held within one year of the Selectmen’s
acceptance, except that such ratification shall not be required for a donation of money to
the Town to supplement a specific appropriation already made, to reduce the tax
assessment, or to reduce the permanent debt.

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0 

ARTICLE 5: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for General 
Government Program expenses.  
Amount requested: $2,313,526 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0. 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0. 

ARTICLE 6: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Public Safety 
Program expenses.  
Amount requested $3,389,796 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0. 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0. 

ARTICLE 7: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Health & Welfare 
Program expenses.  
Amount requested: $827,319 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0. 



6 

Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0. 

ARTICLE 8: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the Public Works 
Program expenses.  
Amount requested: $1,561,060 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0. 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0. 

ARTICLE 9: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Recreation, Culture, 
Contingency and Miscellaneous Program expenses.  
Amount requested: $680,214 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0. 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0. 

ARTICLE 10: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Capital Expense 
& Reserve Account and Debt Service Payments.  
Amount requested: $3,557,280 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0. 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 9-2. 

ARTICLE 11: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate $3,705,979 from estimated non-
property tax revenues, $200,000 from undesignated fund balance, and $600,000 from Capital 
Projects Reserve Account to reduce the property tax commitment. 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0  
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted: 11-0 

ARTICLE 12: To see if the Town will vote to ratify the Selectmen’s acceptance of a gift of a new 
2025/26 Sutphen Monarch Pumper, with a 1500 GPM Pump and a 1,000-gallon water tank. The 
truck is equipped with a foam system and a 30-gallon foam cell.  The gift is from the Port Village 
Fire Company, the Goose Rocks Fire Company, the Atlantic Volunteer Engine Company, and the 
Wildwood Volunteer Fire Company (This gift was originally funded through the Kittredge Family 
Fire Equipment Fund.), such gift having an approximate value of $765,000 and such gift to be 
used by the Kennebunkport Fire Department. 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0  
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted: 11-0 



7 

HEREOF FAIL NOT TO MAKE DUE SERVICE of this Warrant and a return of your doing 
thereon, at a time and place of said meeting. 

GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS this 27th day of April 2023, Kennebunkport, Maine. 

______________________ ____________________________ 
Edward W. Hutchins, II Michael Weston 

____________________________ ____________________________ 
Allen A. Daggett Sheila W. Matthews-Bull 

____________________________ 
Jon Dykstra 

A majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine 

A true attested copy of the warrant attest: 

____________________________ 
Tracey L. O’Roak, Town Clerk 



This page was intentionally left blank. 



Item 7













Item 8













































































































































T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T, M A I N E 
– INCORPORATED 1653 –

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Fr: Eric Labelle, P.E., Dep. Director of Public Works 
Re: Authorize replacement of Reznor UEZ-260 heater 
Dt: April 20, 2023 

February of this year, one of two heaters in the truck bay stopped working. A heating 
technician was called to evaluate and deemed the unit unrepairable. 

We have since gathered three quotations to replace the unit. Quotes were provided 
from Boucher Propane, Garrett Pillsbury, and Branch Brook. Prices ranged from 
$8,370 to $23,600. We reviewed the bids to assure the equipment and installation 
were comparable. It was determined that they were. 

Based on our review, I would recommend we award the installation to Branch Brook 
for a price of $8,370. 

Item 10



This page was intentionally left blank. 





This page was intentionally left blank. 



Boucher Propane
211 Dennett Rd
Biddeford, ME  04005 US
maplehillbelgians@yahoo.com

Estimate

ADDRESS

Kennebunkport Public Works
SHIP TO

Kennebunkport Public Works

ESTIMATE # DATE

1044 03/08/2023

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Materials Change out 2 Reznor heaters to 2 
new Reznor 260,000 BTU 90% 
efficient.  
Heating, venting, hooking up & 
electrical complete.

Rental of lift from Taylor rental

Reznor is quoting 3-4 weeks 
delivery time

2 11,800.00 23,600.00

TOTAL $23,600.00

Accepted By Accepted Date



This page was intentionally left blank. 



To: Kennebunkport Highway Department 

From: Garrett Pillsbury Plumbing & Heating  

RE: Propane Heater  Replacement   

Date: 2/19/2023 

We will supply and install a new propane fired heating unit to serve your building. This 

includes the following: 

• We will remove and dispose of the existing unit.

• We will supply and install one new REZNOR propane unit where the existing

unit is located. Model: UEZ-260

• We will install new vent piping to the existing vent piping.

• All work is to be performed during regular business hours.

• Material taxes are not included.

• Price valid for 30 days.

Total Cost: $14,036.00 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with this proposal. 

Tom Littlefield 

Sales Person & Project Coordinator 

Garrett Pillsbury Plumbing & Heating 
119 York Street  
Kennebunk, ME  04043 

207.985.2130 



This page was intentionally left blank. 



 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
-INCORPORATED 1653-

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager, Kennebunkport Board of Selectmen 
From: Public Safety Committee 
Date: April 4, 2023 
Subject: South Main Street 

Background: 
Recently at a Board of Selectmen meeting, property owner David Strachan 
expressed concerns regarding the safety of South Main Street. As a result of that 
conversation Town Manager Laurie Smith requested that the Public Safety 
Committee review relevant data concerning South Main and provide 
recommendations if any were warranted. 

Area of Review: 
South Main Street is approximately 7 tenths of a mile. Predominant development 
consists primarily of year-round residential homes, with a number of non-
conforming lodging establishments. At times during the summer, it receives 
additional traffic as a “local knowledge” way to avoid summer traffic on Ocean 
Avenue, which runs parallel and to the west of South Main. Typical travelled 
width is 20’. Due to the predominance of ledge in the area the road is 
characteristically considered narrow with numerous curves. As a result, it is 
uncomfortable to drive the actual posted speed limit. According to the Police 
Department several traffic /speed details have been done however actual 
speeding vehicles are difficult to find because the road does not allow the normal 
vehicle driver the ability to speed.  
Pedestrians are often an issue particularly in the summer, since without 
sidewalks foot traffic is required to be in the roadway. 

Item 11



2 

Process: 
The Public Safety Committee reviewed relevant traffic data (accident reports) and 
past traffic studies produced as part of previously approved development plans, 
as well as their own experience and knowledge of the area.   

Materials: 
• Past Accident Reports
• Traffic Assessment by William J Bray, PE Colony Hotel -North Campus

Redevelopment Project June 27th, 2021
• Walsh Engineering South Main Street Intersection Reconfiguration Plan

Dated  July 21st 2021
• Gorrill-Palmer Traffic Report generated as part of the “Cottages at Cape

Arundel” project Dated April 13th, 2005.
• HNTB peer review of proposed changes to the intersection of Colony

Avenue (Formerly Kings Highway) and Arlington Avenue dated January
31st, 2006.

Conclusion:    
The reports are limited in scope to the southern end of South Main where it 
intersects with Colony and Arlington vs the northern intersection with Wildes 
District. 
After reviewing the associated reports and data it appears that South Main is not 
considered a High Crash Location. 
Recommendations:   

• The committee has found that the recommendations identified on the
Walsh intersection reconfiguration plan (similar in nature to the ones
shown on the HNTB report) should be considered.

• Erect “STOP AHEAD” sign prior to corner of South Main Street and Spring
Valley headed toward Colony Avenue alerting motorists of the coming
stop/intersection.

• Paint a stop bar on the pavement at the current stop sign.
• Have lighting committee evaluate South Main Street for lighting

changes/additions.

Should the Board wish to have South Main studied in further detail a separate 
study performed by a traffic engineer would need to be considered. 



1. Past Accident Reports



1

April Fortier

From: Craig Sanford
Sent: Tuesday, March 21, 2023 1:55 PM
To: April Fortier; Werner Gilliam; Christopher Simeoni; John Everett
Subject: RE: South Main Street Traffic Study

Since January of 2011, there has only been ONE accident on South Main Street. 
 

From: April Fortier <afortier@kennebunkportme.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 21, 2023 1:49 PM 
To: Werner Gilliam <wgilliam@kennebunkportme.gov>; Christopher Simeoni <csimeoni@kennebunkportme.gov>; Craig 
Sanford <csanford@kennebunkportme.gov>; John Everett <JEverett@kennebunkportme.gov> 
Subject: RE: South Main Street Traffic Study 
 

Good afternoon! 
 
Attached please find a copy of the DRAFT packet of proposed 
materials to be submitted to the Select Board in reference to the 
South Maine Traffic Study.   
 
Again, if you have additional materials you wish to add to the packet 
please send them directly to me.  I have also attached a copy of 
Chris’ comments, too.   
 
We are missing the past accident reports from the police 
department.  Chief, if you or someone in your office could forward 
that information directly to me, I would greatly appreciate it.  If there 
have been no accidents an email indicating the same is greatly 
appreciated.   
 
If anyone has any questions, please feel free to reach out to me.   
 
Thank you! 
 
April C. Fortier 
Administrative Assistant to 
Code Enforcement/Planning and Development, 
Planning Board, Board of Assessment Review, 
Growth Planning Committee, 
Zoning Board of Appeals. 

afortier
Highlight



2. Traffic Assessment by 
William J Bray, PE 
Colony Hotel -North 
Campus Redevelopment 
Project June 27th, 2021 

  















3. Walsh Engineering 
South Main Street 
Intersection 
Reconfiguration Plan 
Dated  July 21st 2021 

  





4. Gorrill-Palmer Traffic 
Report generated as part 
of the “Cottages at Cape 
Arundel” project Dated 
April 13th, 2005. 

  











5. HNTB peer review of
proposed changes to the
intersection of Colony
Avenue (Formerly Kings
Highway) and Arlington
Avenue dated January
31st 2006















This page was intentionally left blank. 



Proclamation 
54th ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL CLERKS WEEK 

April 30 - May 6, 2023 

Whereas, The Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk, a time honored and vital 

part of local government exists throughout the world, and 

Whereas, The Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk is the oldest among public 

servants, and 

Whereas, The Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk provides the professional 

link between the citizens, the local governing bodies and agencies of government at 

other levels, and 

Whereas, Professional Municipal Clerks have pledged to be ever mindful of their 

neutrality and impartiality, rendering equal service to all. 

Whereas, The Professional Municipal Clerk serves as the information center on 

functions of local government and community. 

Whereas, Professional Municipal Clerks continually strive to improve the 

administration of the affairs of the Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk 

through participation in education programs, seminars, workshops and the annual 

meetings of their state, provincial, county and international professional 

organizations. 

Whereas, It is most appropriate that we recognize the accomplishments of the Office 

of the Professional Municipal Clerk. 

Now, Therefore, I, Edward Hutchins, Chairman of the Kennebunkport Board of 

Selectmen, do recognize the week of April 30 through May 6, 2023, as Professional 

Municipal Clerks Week, and further extend appreciation to our Professional 

Municipal Clerk staff, and to all Professional Municipal Clerks for the vital services 

they perform and their exemplary dedication to the communities they represent. 

Dated this 27th day of April 2023 

Attest: ____________________________ 

Item 12



This page was intentionally left blank. 




